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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Members of Ethos Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ethos Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Holding Company™) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the
Group™ or “the entities™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended. and notes to the
consolidated financial statements. including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditor on separate financial statement of such subsidiary, as was audited
by the other auditor, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (*“Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31
March 2019, of its consolidated profit and’other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Act. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Other Information

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the holding Company’s annual report. but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit 6f the consolidated financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other
information and. in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
zilsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
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misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit report of other auditors,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

4. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of'the Act. The Board of Directors of the holding company and governing partners
of the partnership firm included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each of the entities and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: the selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by
the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management / Board of Directors of the
entities included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each of the entities to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The respective management/ Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group is responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of each of the entities.

5. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditot’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidénce that is sufficient_and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the override of internal control.

-
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstancés. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in
preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, of which we are
the independent auditors. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of financial information of such entities. For the other entity included in the consolidated financial
statements, which has been audited by other auditor, such other auditor remain responsible for the
direction. supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in para (a) of the section
titled *Other Matters’ in this audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit report of the other
auditor referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and of the entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

6.
(a)

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of a subsidiary (interest in which have been incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements) and whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs.367.01
lakhs as at 31 March 2019, total revenues of Rs. 871.88 lakhs and net cash flows amounting to Rs.18.21
lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These
financial statement have been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
1moums and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3)
=2
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of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the audit
report of the other auditor.

(b) The comparative prior period consolidated financial statements were not audited since the Company
availed the exemption of not preparing consolidated financial statements on fulfillment of certain

C

onditions as per Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Amendments Rules 2016. Also, refer note 2(a)(ii)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is nat modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the report of the other auditor.

a)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the
other auditor on separate financial statements of a subsidiary as was audited by other auditor, as noted
in the *Other Matters’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid

c)

consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated balance sheet. the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified

e)

B.

under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
31 March 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company. none of the
directors of the Group company incorporated in [ndia is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules; 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditor on separate financial statements of the subsidiary, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:

fig The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2019 on the cofsolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

b
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ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2019.

iti.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Holding Company or its subsidiary entity during the year ended 31 March 2019.

iv. The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings
in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not
been made in the financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31
March 2019.

o

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports
of the statutory auditor of such subsidiary entity which were not audited by us, the remuneration paid
during the current year by the Holding Company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company is not in excess
of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Adhir Kapoor
Place: New Delhi Partner .
Date: 04 May 2019 Membership No. 098297
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements of Ethos
Limited for the period ended 31 March 2019

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Referred to
in paragraph 7(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of Ethos Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company. have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such
internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the *Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the
criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of the imternal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement. including the asséssment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
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and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Adhir Kapoor
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 04 May 2019 Membership No.: 098297



Ethes Limited
Consolidared Balance Sheet as at 31 Mn_rch 2019

(Rupees in lakhs excepr share duta, per share data and unless otherwise stateed)

As at As at
Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assers
Property, plant and equipment 3 212177 164680
Capital work-in-progress 3 440,02 0444
Other intangible assets 4 57.45 2744
Intangible assets under development . 1 R -
Financial assets
- Loans 5 1,024.27 910,75
= Other financial assets 6 120.97 21503
Income tax assets (net) T 12324 123.24
Deferred tax assets (net) b 631.93 483.66
Other non-current assets 9 460,13 519.75
Total non-current assels 5,017.99 3,991.11
Current assets
Inventorics 10 20,556.94 17,103.29
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 11 814.05 645.62
- Cash and cash equivalents 12 85508 72891
- Loans. 5 405 .54 367.99
- Other financial assets ] 6.71 951
Other current assets 13 2,225.56 2,135.75
Total current assets 24.864.48 10,991.07
Total Assets 29,882.47 24.982.18
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 1,690.17 1,590 86
Other equity 15 11,698.20 7.569.87
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 13,388.37 9,160.73
Non controlling interest 0.00 -
Total equity 13,388.37 9,160.73
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Fmnancial habilites
- Borrowings 14] 1. 40965 110929
Prowvisions 13 23862 142.24
Total non-current liabilities 1,648.27 1,251.53
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 16 5.304.30 4.098.84
=Tmde payables 18
~total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
<total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 6,653.36 7.723.40
small enterprises
= Other financial liabilitics 19 . 1.946.95 1.67834
Other current Labilities 20 626,65 1.003.18
Provisions 17 714 269
Current tax habilities (net) 21 30743 6347
Total current liabilities 14.845.83 14.569.92
Total liabilities 16,494.10 15.821.45
Total Equity and Liabilities 20.882.47 24,982.18
Significant accounting policies 2
Notes to the consolidated i il stat I 341

o P

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Accoumianty
Finn Registration No, 101248W/W-100022

Adhir Kapoor
Partner
Membership No, - (198297 -

Place: New Delhi
Dgte: 04 May 2019

For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors of

Ethos Limited

Qa_h_ao

Lirgrnns

Managing Direcior
DIN: 00012158

Chief Financial Cifficer
i

:#WOJV
nil Dhiman
Company Secretary

Place; New Delhi
Date, 04 May 2019

Director
DIN: 00012232

o0
o
Pranav Sh; r Saboo

Chief Executive Officer




Ethos Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rupees in lakhs except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

Note Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue from operations 2z 441177 15,609 19
Other income . 23 57 86 17576
Total Income 44,509.63 35,784.95
Expenses .
Purchase of stock-in-trade 24 34,088 34 27,309 88
Changes i mventories of stock-in-trade 2 (3,453 65) (204 71)
Employee benefits expense 26 331252 226899
Finance costs 27 76539 658127
Depreciation and amortization expense 2z 48451 407 36
Other expenses 9 6,279 87 4,824 44
Total expenses 42.326.98 35.264.23
Profit before income lax 2,182.65 520.72
Income tax expense
= Current tax 31

= Current year 1,013.61 ¥1.39

- Changes in estimates related 1o previous year (29 93) -

- Deferred tax (137 88) 3993
Total income tax expense B45.80 12132
Profit for the vear 1,336.85 399,40
Other comprehensive income/(expense)

Trems that will not be reclaxsified 1o profic or loss

- Re-measurement of defined benefit (assetVhabiliy (29.76) 677
Incomie tax relatmg o iems that will noi be reclassified ro profit or loss

- Re-measurement of defined benefit {asset pliabiliy 10.40 (2 36)
Total other comprehensive (expense)/ income for the year (net of income tax) (19.36) 4.41
Total comprehensive income for the year 1.317.49 403 .81
Profit attributable to;

Owners of the Company 1,335.52 39900
Non-controlling interest 133 040
Profit for the year 1.336.85 399,40
Other comprehensive (exp 1 attributable to:

Onweners of the Company (1934 441
Non-controllirig interest ’ {0.02} 000
Other comprehensive (exy 31 i attributable to: (Wﬁ 4.41
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Company 131617 403.40
Non-controlling interest 1.32 040
Total comprehensive income for the year 1.317.49 403.81
Earnings per equity share [nommal value of Rs. 10 (previous year Rs 10)] 32

Basic (Rs ) TAQ 194
Diluted (Rs ) T40 1.94
Sigmificant accounting policies 2

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 341

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the lidated financial nts
As per our report of even date attached
for BSR& Co, LLP

Chartered Aveonnionty
Firm Registration No. 101 248W/W-100022

Adhir Kapoor
Fartner
Membership No. | 098297

Place New Delh
Date: 04 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Ethos Limited

Managing Director
DIN 00012158

an
v Secretary

Place. New Delln
Date: 04 May 2019

Anil Khanna
{hrecior
DIN: 00012232

Mm/

Company Secrerry
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Fthos Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rugpwews in fukhe except vhare dav, per vhare et ond iless atherwise siatid)

For the vear ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 Murch 2018
.
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before imcome tax 218265 202
Adjustmenty for
Depreciation and mmortization expense 48451 407,36
Property, plant and equipments weiten ofl (net) - a0
Share based payments - 1.74
Finance costs T65.39 65827
Inderest meome 197 86) (%3.74)
Provisions i longer required writlen back (SRET) (69.72)
Ammtization of premium on forward e SNt - 777
Unirealized foreign exchange igoin) / loss (22.76) s342
Advances | deposits ¢/ Bad debts written off kAl 5584
Operating cush Aow before working capital changes 329147 1.586.07
{Increase| in loans (67.35) (13631)
Decreases (increase) in other finininl assers .85 (131.97)
Ilneresse ) /decrease m other mon-curreni assets (45.08) 1183
{Incrense) in inventorics (3.453.65) (204.71)
{Increase) in irnde receivabrles (16843} (48421
{Ingrease) in other curnent assets (12821 12,005 68)
Incrense in provisions 7106 R56
{Decrease) increase in wrade payables [94B.43) 127541
I (d } in wther T I liabrilitses 3457 (49.85)
(Dhecrease) in other current liabilities (37h.34) (96.03)
Cash (used in) / generated from opernting sctivities (1377 1184.589)
Income tax paid (net) (73970 hH.60
Net cash {used in) from operating activities (2113410 (1620
B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of propeny, plant and equipment 11.298.09) {1,183.63)
Proceeds froti sale of property, plani and equipment .65 10.03
Interest received 14.16 6.07
Net cash used in investing activities (1.283.28) (1,167.53)
. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital {including premium) 191017 232550
Proceeds from non-carment borrowings 8410 1,128 k8
Repayment of non-current borrowings (203.59) (2.397.75)
Proceeds from/| of gurrent by ings (et} 119573 7353
Interest paid (T62.95) {585.10)
Nei cash flow from fnancing activities 352346 1,100,606
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 126,77 (17747
Cash and cash equivalents ut the beginning of the year 72891 598
Cush snd cash equivalents at the end of the vear 455.68 TR91
Notes ©
|, Cash and eash equivalents include :
Balance with banks in current accounts 28115 13072
Chegues, deafts on hand | 1844 | 6638
Cash on hand 101.12 oK. 3
Credit cards receivible 5507 23367
Caush and cuxh balance at the end of the year B55.68 71801
1 The cash flow has been prepared in d with "Indirect Methdd® as set out on Indisn Accounting Standard -7

on "Stateiment on Cash Flows "
3. Refer note ne 2 for significant accounting policies,

4. Reconciliation of movemenis of fiabilities to cash lows ansing from financing activities
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1)

i)

Reporting entity

Ethos Limited (‘the Company' or the Parent Company), is a limited liability company domiciled in India and
was incorporated on 5 November 2007. These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and
its subsidiary (referred to collectively as the “Group™). The Group’s business consists of trading of watches,
accessories and luxury items, marketing and support services and rendering of related after sale services.

Significant accounting policies

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (India
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the
*Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Effective 1 April 2016, the Group had transitioned to Ind AS while the consolidated financial statements
were being prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (previous
GAAP) till 31 March 2017 and the transition was carried out in accordance of Ind AS 101 "First time adoption
of Indian Accounting Standards". While carrying out transition, in addition to the mandatory exemptions, the
Group had elected to certain exemptions which are listed as below:

= The Group had opted to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets as recognized in the consolidated financial statements prepared under previous
GAAP and use the same as deemed cost in the financial statement as at the transition date.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 were approved by the
Holding Company's Board of Directors on 4 May 2019.

During the previous year, the Group had availed the exemption of not preparing consolidated financial
statements on fulfilment of certain conditions as per Rule 6 of the Companies ( Accounts) Amendments Rules
2016. Accordingly, the corresponding figures in the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31
March 2019 are unaudited. In the current year, the Group has prepared consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Ind AS as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the
Companies (India Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 notified under section 133 of Act and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

i) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Group is the Indian rupee. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Indian rupees. All amounts have been rounded-off o the nearest lakhs, up to two places of
decimal, unless otherwise indicated.

-

Atcountants
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iv)  Basis of measurement

v)

vi)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
(including derivative instruments)

Net defined benefits (assets)/liability Fair value of the plan assets less present value of
defined benefits obligations

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 2(c) and 3 — Assessment of useful life of Property, plant and equipment
- Note 2(c) and 4 — Assessment of useful life of Intangible assets

- Note 2(g). 17 and 36 — Provisions and contingent liabilities

- Note 2(n) and 7 — Income taxes

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2018 is included in the following notes:

- Note 35 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

= Note 17 and 36 — Recognition and measurement of provision and contingencies, key assumptions
about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources:

- Note 2(q)(ii) — Impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable
amounts:

- Note 2(q)i)- Impairment of financial assets

- Note 8- Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses
carried forward can be used:

- Note 2(a) (vi)- Fair value measurement

- Note 35- Shared based payments

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to measurement of fair values. This includes
the top management division which is responsible for overseeing all significant fair value measurements.
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including Level 3 fair values. The top management division regularly reviews significant unobservable
inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information. is used to measure fair values, then the top
management division assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that
these valuations meet the requirement of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the
valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

- Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

- Level 3. inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the changes have occurred,

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these
consolidated financial statements is included in the respective notes

b) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements comprises the financial statement of the Group, and the entities
controlled by the Group including its subsidiary as at 31 March 2019. Control is achicved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and
only if the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affects its returns,

Consolidated Ind AS financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Ifa member of the Group uses accounting policies
other than those adopted in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member's financial statements
in preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group's
accounting policies.

The details of the consolidated entity is as foﬁows:

Name of subsidiaries / associates Country of incorporation % of holding
Cognition Digital LLP* India 99.99%

* The percentage of holding denotes the Share of Profits in LLP.

Qf Chartoreq \-o)
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¢) Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE")

Recognition and measurement

ftems of PPE are measured at cost of acquisition or construction which includes capitalised finance costs
less accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its
working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended
use. and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Capital work Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their intended
use at the reporting date.

Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each Balance sheet date, are shown under other
non-current assets.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property. plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. '

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Group.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of PPE less their estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation on items of PPE is provided as per rates corresponding to the useful life specified in Schedule
IT'to the Companies Act, 2013 read with the notification dated 29 August 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs except for office equipments being mobile phones which are depreciated over the estimated life of
two years from the date of capitalization on the basis of internal evaluation by the management basis which
the management believes that this useful life best represents the period over which these asset will be used.

Leaschold improvements are depreciated under the straight line over the period of lease.

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of the lease. In view of the management,
these rates are indicative of the estimated economic useful lives of the fixed assets.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted
if appropriate.

Depreciation on additions (disposal) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e from (upto) the date on which asset
is ready for use (disposed of).

ACCountants
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d)

e)

Derecognition

A property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal
of a tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other intangible assets

Acquired Intangible

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are measured initially at cost. Cost of an item of Intangible
asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes. after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use.After initial recognition. an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation expense in statement of profit and

loss. The estimated useful life of Computer Software (ERP) is 6 years.

Amortisation method. useful life and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted if appropriate.

Derecognition

Intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
and disposal.

Inventories
Inventories which comprises traded goods which are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of inventories is based on the weighted average cost method. and includes expenditure incurrin gin

acquiring the inventories, and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Employee benefits

Short-term employvee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., salaries and
wages, short term compensated absences and bonus ctc.. if the Group has a present legal or constructive

[
l
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obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of
obligation can be estimated reliably,

Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised
as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate
of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be
met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do
meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date.

The Group has elected to apply Ind AS 102 Share based payment to equity instruments that vested after the
date of transition to Ind AS pursuant to the exemption under Ind AS 101.

Post-employment benefits

-Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund and employee state
insurance scheme (*ESI") to Government administered scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The
Group’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in
which the employee renders the related service.

-Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Gratuity is
a defined benefit plan. The administration of the gratuity scheme has been entrusted to the Life Insurance
Corporation of India (‘LIC"). The Group's net obligation in respect of gratuity is calculated separately by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability i.e. Gratuity, which comprise actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Group determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then- net defined benefit liability,
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.
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g

h)

Other long term employee benefits

Compensated absences

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefits
is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is
deducted. Such obligation such as those related to compensate absences is measured on the basis of an
annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit cost credit method. Remeasurements gains
or lossess are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of past event. the Group has a present
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if. as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably. and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future losses
are not provided for.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a deemed equity contribution if no premium was paid when
guarantee is received. Deemed equity contribution is initially measured at fair value.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows
between the contractual payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that
may. but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be
estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility
of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility
of an inflow of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are recognized when the realisation of
income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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k)

Commitments

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of
assets. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Revenue

The Group earns revenue primarily from trading of watches. accessories and luxury items, marketing
and support services and rendering of related after sale services.

Effective | April 2018, the Group has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework
for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS
I8 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Group has adopted Ind AS 115 using the
cumulative effect method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of 1 April 2018. In accordance
with the cumulative effect method. the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The
following is a summary of new and/or revised significant accounting policies related to revenue
recognition. Refer Note 2 “Significant Accounting Policies,” in the Group’s 2018 Annual Report for the
policies in effect for revenue prior to 1 April 2018. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was
insignificant,

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products sold or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services. To recognize revenues, we apply the following five step approach: (1) identify the contract
with a customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction
price, (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize
revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

At contract inception, the Group assesses its promise to transfer products or services to a customer to
identify separate performance obligations. The Group applies judgement to determine whether each
product or services promised to a customer are capable of being distinct, and are distinet in the context
of the contract. if not, the promised product or services are combined and accounted as a single
performance obligation. The Group allocates the arrangement consideration to separately identifiable
performance obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling price or residual method. Stand-alone
selling prices are determined based on sale prices for the components when it is regularly sold separately,
in cases where the Group is unable to determine the stand-alone selling price the Group uses third-party
prices for similar deliverables or the Group nses expected cost plus margin approach in estimating the
stand-alone selling price.

For performance obligations where control is transferred over time, revenues are recognized by
measuring progress towards completion of the performance obligation. The selection of the method to
measure progress towards completion requires judgment and is based on the nature of the promised
products or services to be provided.
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m)

The method for recognizing revenues and costs depends on the nature of the products sold and services
rendered:

Sale of goods

Revenue on sale of goods are recognized when the customer obtains control of the specified asset.

Customer loyalty programmes

For customer loyalty programmes, the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of
initial sale is allocated between the award credits and the other components of the sale. The amount
allocated to award credits is deferred and is recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed
and the Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the discounted products under the terms of the
programme or when it is no longer probable that the award credits will be redeemed.

Sale of services

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss when the services are rendered and the
related costs are incurred.

Recognition of interest income or expense
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The “effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- The gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- The amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is
no longer credit-impaired. then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by the Group in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction
of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are
capitalized as a part of cost of the asset. Other barrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Income taxes -

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination or an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.
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0)

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty.
if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrving amounts of the assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future profits will be available against
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may
not be available. Therefore, in case of history of recent losses, the Group recognises a deferred tax asset only
to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax
assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the
extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets. and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authorities.

Leases

At the inception of each lease, the lease arrangement is classified as either a finance lease or an operating
lease based on the substance of the lease arrangement.

Finance leases

Assets leased by the Group in its capacity as lesse® where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
vest in the Group are classified as finance leases, A finance lease is recognised as an asset and a liability at
the commencement of the lease, at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the
finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Operating leases
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Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group
as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payment made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease unless the payment are structure to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

- amortised cost;

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt investment;

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — equity investment:
- fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

- A debt investment is measured at FVOCTI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets;-and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

On the recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect
“to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity
investment). This election is made on an investment-by- investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOC]I as described above are
measured r FVTPL, This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may

I
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irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
at FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
at amortised cost | interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is recognised in

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under
at FVOCI the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCI. On de- recognition, gains and losses accumulated
in OCI are reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised
investments at as income in statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
FVOCI a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are

recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

uent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classificd as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL, if it is classified as held for trading; or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition
is also recognised in profit or loss.

ifi. De-recognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantlally all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does
not retain control of the financial asset,

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but

.retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.
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a)

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when. and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk exposures. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contact is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liability when the fair value is negative.

Impairment
i. Impairment of financial asset

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets measured at amortised
cost. At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- the breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation; or

- the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for
the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

- Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

Accountants
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In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses. the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both

S quantitative and qualitative information and analysis. based on the Group's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability- weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured

as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.c. difference between the cash flow due to the Group in
- accordance with the contract and the cash flow that the Group expects to receive),

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowance for financial assets measured at the amortised cost is deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (cither partially or in full) to the extent that

there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the

debtors do not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the

amount subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
o enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group's procedure for recovery of amounts due.

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

¥ The Group’s non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing. assets that do not generate
independent cash flows are grouped together into cash generating units (CGUs), Each CGU represents
the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of as CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and fair
value less cost to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

- The Group’s corporate assets (e.g.. central office building for providing support to various CGUs) do
not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable
amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. Tmpairment losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had béen recognised.
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t)

u)

v)

r) Foreign currency transactions
Initial recognition

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Group at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the
actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Measurement at the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences on restatement/settlement of all monetary items arc recognised in profit or loss.

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Group’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. All operating
segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance,

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand. demand deposits held with banks. other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events of bonus issue
and share split. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares
are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a lalgr date.
& s ‘. /}- N
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w)

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 116, Leases

The Group is required to adopt Ind AS 116, Leases from | April 2019. Ind AS 116 introduces a single, on-
balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting
remains similar to the current standard — i.c. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.
It replaces existing leases guidance, Ind AS 17, Leases.

The Group has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact on its consolidated financial
statements but has not yet completed its detailed assessment. The quantitative impact of adoption of Ind AS
116 on the consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application is not reasonably estimable
as at present.

Leases in which the Group is a lessee

Under the new standard, the Group is required to recognise the assets and liabilities for its operating leases.
The nature of expenses related to those leases will now change because the Group will recognise a
depreciation charge for right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities.

Previously, the Group recognised operating lease expense over the term of the lease, and recognised assets
and liabilities only to the extent that there was a timing difference between actual lease payments and the
expense recognised.

Based on the preliminary assessment. the operating leases like liaison offices, warehouse and residential
accommodation are short term leases and accordingly are exempted from the above recognition criteria.
Accordingly. no significant impact is expected for the Group’s operating leases.

No significant impact is expected for the Group’s finance leases.

Leases in which the Group is a lessor

Based on the information currently available, there are no contracts in which the Group is a lessor.
Transition

The Group plans to apply Ind AS 116 initially on 1 April 2019, using the modified retrospective approach.
Therefore. the cumulative effect of adopting Ind AS 116 will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings at 1 April 2019, with no restatement of comparative information.

The Group plans to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on transition. This
means that it will apply Ind AS 116 to all contracts entered into before | April 2019 and identified as leases
in accordance with Ind AS 17.

Ind AS 12 Income taxes (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and
Uncertainty over income tax treatments)

The amendment relatingo income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the
income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to
where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The Group does not expect any
impact from this pronouncement. It is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where
the entity pays a tax on dividend which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to taxation authorities on
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behalf of shareholders. Such amount paid or payable to taxation authorities continues to be charged to equity
as part of dividend, in accordance with Ind AS 12

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the
determination of taxable profit (tax loss). tax bases. unused tax losses. unused tax credits and tax rates. when
there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. It outlines the following: (1) the entity has
to use judgement, to determine whether each tax treatment should be considered separately or whether some
can be considered together. The decision should be based on the approach which provides better predictions
of the resolution of the uncertainty (2) the entity is to assume that the taxation authority will have full
knowledge of all relevant information while examining any amount (3) entity has to consider the probability
of the relevant taxation authority accepting the tax treatment and the determination of taxable profit (tax
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates would depend upon the probability. The
Group does not expect any significant impact of the amendment on its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order to
allow measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other
comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation payments. Ethos Limited does not
expect this amendment to have any impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 19 — Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment. curtailment or settlement accurs. it ie mandatary that the
current service cost and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are determined using the
assumptions used for the re-measurement. In addition, amendments have been included to clarify the effect
of a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling. Ethos
Limited does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact on its financial statements.

e
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Ethos Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(AN aememnts e & dakhs, except for share dote amd f otherwise stateal

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
S5 Loans* Current Non-current Current Nom-current
fmsecured, conxidered good wlesy otherwise siated)
Security deposits .
- from related parties (refer note no 37) - 677 - 677
- from others 10303 1,01027 led 76 40126
Loan to employees . el 723 323 272
405 84 1,024 27 16799 910.75
*The Groujy's exposure to credit and currency risk, and loss allowances related 1o other non current financial assets are disclosed in note 33
Asat Asan
6. iher financial assets 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Current Non-curreni Current Nom-current
Dieposies with original maturity of more than 12 months # - 12097 - 21503
Derivative financial instruments - - 2180 .
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 671 - 671 -
671 12097 951 21503
# These deposits include restricted bank deposi ing 10 Rs. 11396 (31 March 2018 Rs 215.03) on account of deposits pledged as security for bank guarantees.
As at As at
% Income tax assels (met) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Advance income tax and tax deducted m source
{(net of provision for mcome-tax Rs | 166 89 (31 March 2018 Rs 204 27) 12324 123.24
12324 12324
As at As at
B, Deferred tax assets (net) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Significam components of the Company's net deferred 1ax are as follows
Deferred tax assels 63103 483 66
Deeferred tax liubilines - -
Net deferred tax assels 631 93 483 06
Opening Balunce Recognised in Recognised in Closing Balance
profit or loss ather
comprehensive
income
2017-2018
Deferred tax assets
Dieferred jax assery o
Property, plant and equipments and Intangible assets 21728 9038 - 307 64
Provision for employee benefits 3949 13.57 (236) 5070
Provision - others ’ 68 06 1346 - 3152
Others 4179 - - 4379
Tax losses carried forward 157.34 {157.34) - -
Net deferred tax asset 525 05 130.93) (236) 483 66
Opening Balance Recognised in Recognised in Closing Balanee
profit or loss oiher
comprehensive
income
018-2019
Deferred tax assets
Dferrred fax ossels on
Property, plant and equipments and [niangible assers 307 64 3659 . M
Provision for emplovee benefits 50,70 2368 1040 8478
Proviston - others 81.52 121 40 - 20292
Onhers 4379 {43 719) - -
Net deferred 1ax asset 483 66 137 38 10 40 631.93
-
\ =
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As ot As at
9 Other non-current assets 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(Hinsecwred, vonsidered good wiless otherwise stated)
Capital advances
- 10 others .57 184 24
Advances other than capital advances .
- Prepaid expenses 162.00 116,95
= CENVAT credit receivable 48 .50 48 56
- Claimn receivable (refer note 36) . 17000 170.00
46013 519.75
-
As at As at
10, Inventories 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(A¥ benwer of cont cnd et realisabli velwe)
Stock-in-trade [inchading goods-in-transit Rs. 214 66 (31 March 2018, Rs. 386 66)]
20,556 94 17.103.29
20,556 04 17.103,.29
As at As at
1. Trade receivables 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(Unsectred, considereel good mmless atherwise siared)
Trade receivables #
- Related parties (refer 1o note 37) a7 51575
- Dithers 396.28 12987
81405 645 62
# The Grroup's exposure to credit and currency risk, and loss allowances related 1o trade receivables are disclosed in note 33
As at As at
12, Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balances with banks in
- current accounts * 28315 B0
Chegues, drais on hand 38244 166 30
Cash on hand 101.12 98 13
Oithers - E
- eredit cards receivable 8897 23367
855 68 728 91

*includes Rs 18.00 (31 March 2018 - Rs Nil) being the amount of equity shares pending allorment

Information pursuant to G.S.R. 308 ( E) dated 30 March 2017 issued by Ministry of corporate affairs: .

The disclosures regarding details of specified bank notes held and d during § N ber 2016 to 30 December 2016 has not been made in these financial statements since the
requirement does not pertain to financial year ended 31 March 2019

As ot Asal

13, Other current assets 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Winsecured, comsidered good wnhess atherwise stated)

.

Prepaid expenses 82 8% 81.96

Advances for supply of goods and services 360 74 20095

Advances to employees b4 56 2947

GST credit recevable 3 1641 24 1,766 30

Duty drawback recoverable - 4881

Deposit under protes: 7550 -

Other advances Qo4 8§26

2,225 56 213575

Accountants




a)

ents for the year ended 31 March 2019
aned i evherwise siated)

As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of Amount Number of Amount
. shares shares
Authorived
Equity shares of Rs. 10 uch 30,700,000 107000 30,700,000 3.070.00
14% lutive P ¥ ible preference shyres of Rs. 130 each 576,924 750.00 576,924 750 00
12% Lati pulsory convertible prefy shares of Rs 110 each 1,200, (040 1,320.00 1,200,000 1,320 00
12% non cumulative redeemuble preference shares of Ry 100 each 1000000 1.000.00 1,000,000 1.000.00
33.476.924 6, 140,00 33,476,924 140,00
= ST =
s, saibscribed and fully pasd wp**
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (1) 16,901,713 169017 15,908,564 1,500 86
14% curmulati pulsory ble preference shares of Rs. 130 each # (i) 576,923 750 00 576,923 750.00
17,478,636 2.440.17 ugs.m 1.340.86

* includes 16,950,000 shares pursuant to transfer of authorised share capital from Rs. 1,695 preference shares to equivalent number of equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each

# classified as "other equity” in the statement of changes in equity

Righus, prefe and ti hed 1o shares

(i) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share The voting rights of an

equity shareholder on show of hand or through proxy shall be in proportion to his share of the paid up capital of the Company The Company declares and pays dividends in
Indian Rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors (except for interim dividend) is subject to approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annunl General Meeting
In the event of liquidation of the Company the holders of equily shares will be entithed 1o recesve the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the mumber of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(ii) The preference sharcholders do not hold any voting rights. The Company declares and pays d'wid.ends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is

subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual Generll Meeting. Where dividend on fative pref shares s not declared For @ financial year the
entitlement thereto 15 carned forward whereas in the case of I A shares the entitl for that year lapses In the event of liquidation of the Company the
holders of preference shares will be entitled to receive the amount of their prel'crm: capital contribution before distribution of the remaining assets to the equity shareholders

Conversion terms of 576,023 4% lative Isorily ibl shares of Rs 130 each fully paid up is § (Five years from the date of alloiment in equal
number of equity shares of face value of Rs 10 mh ata premham of Rs t"u (and any Iative dividend remaining unpaid) at the end of 5 (Five) years Accordingly, these
preference shares will be canverted in various tranches commencing 6 November 20119,

The holder of 248,373 14% cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs 130 cach has "tag along and put option rights”. Tag along rights shall trigger in the
event of promoter selling a substantial portion (more than 10% of combined shareholding of the promoter) of his shares in the Company to any person before the expiry of the
term. At such an instance the preference shares shall automatically be converted into equity shares The holder shail have the right to cause the promoter 1o ensure that the
proposed transferee purchases all or part of its shares on a pro rata basis at the same terms and price as offered 1o the promoter. The holder shall also have the put option right
which provides a windaw period of 12 manths from the end of term for exercising the aption to either cause the promoter 1o buy back. purchase and / or ensure any third party
to purchase all s shares The holder also has ROFR (nght of first refusal) wherein ai the event when the Company 1ssues new shares in fivour of any shareholder, the Company
shall first offer such number of shares to the holder such that its shareholding in the Company prior to such transaction 1s maintained afier the completion of such ion.

The holder of 115462 14% cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs 130 each has "tag along and put option righis” Tag along nghts shall trigger in the
event of promoter selling a substantial portion (more than | (% of combined shareholding of the promoter) of his shares in the Company to any persan before the expiry of the
erm. At such an instance the prefierence shares shall automatically be converted into equity shares. The holder shall have the right to cause the promoter 1o ensure that the
proposed transferee purchases all or part of its shares on a pro rata basis at the same terms and price as offered to the promoter The holder shall also have the put aption righ
which provides a window period of 18 months from the end of term for exercising the option to either cause the promoter to buy back, purchase and / or ensure any third party
to purchase all its shares.

The holder of 272,728 12% cumulative compulsorily ible prefarence shares { i into equity shares on 25 November 2017) having face value of Rs. 110 per share
has & put option which provides & window period of 18 months from the end of term i e 26 November 2017 for ising the option to either cause the promoter to buy back.
purchase and / or ensure any third party to purchase all its shares.

(i) Lmpleayee Stock eptien; - Terms attached to stock options granted to employees of the company and its holding company are deseribed in note 3% regarding emplovee share

hased payments

Recoeafimiens of memter of sheres outstanding af the begining avd end of the roporting vear

Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shures shares
i} Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
At the beginning of the vear 15,908 564 1,590 86 13,203,805 1,320,39
Add 1ssued during the year 993,149 9911 1,583 400 158.34
Add issued p o jon of 12% ¢ lani pulsory
convertible preference shares v - ¥ 1,100,010 110.00

Add: issued on exercise of employee stock options - - 21,250 213
At the end of the year 16,901,713 1,690.17 15,908,564 1,590.86
i) 14% cumul Isory ible prefe shares of Rs. 130 each fully
A the beginning o['l.heyul 576,923 750.00 576,923 750.00
At the end of the year - 576,923 750.00 576,923 750,00

i = —— e
) 12% lative compulsory ibile prefi shares of Rs 110 each fully
At the beginning of the year . - - 1. 100,010 1.210.01
Add: redeemed during the year - (1,100,010) (121001}
At the end of the year - 5 % 2

i .--“
LI




Ethos Limited

31 March 2019

(Al comennes 0 ¢ letkhs,

) Shares held by wlimeie holding company holding compety and or their sehsidiaries associates

As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Fageny sharey of By 10 each fiolly peid wp .
KDDL Limated (holding company and uliimaie holding company) 10,394,740 1,039 47 10,223,508 1,022.38
~Mahen Distribution Limited (feilow subsidiary) . 2,203,150 22532 2,293,150 229 32
1% cupnlgrtove compulsary comertible proference shares of B {30 cach fully
paid np
-KDDL Limited {holding company and ulti holding company) 19,230 2500 19,230 2500
d) Detenls of shareholders hoddinmg wore than 5% shares of o vlass of shares
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of & holding in the Number of “ holding in

shares class shares the class
Equiry stares of R, 10 eoch fully pared up held by
-KDDL Linuted 10,394,740 6l 80 10,223,508 64.26
~Mahen Distribution Limited 2,293,150 13.57 2,293,150 14.41
-Mr Mukul Mahavir Agrawal 900,976 533 810,067 509
1% crmmideative compitsory comverfihle proference shares of R |30 vach fully
-Sixth Sense India Opportunities — 1 248,373 43 05 248,373 43,08
-Mr. Nikhil Vora 115,462 20,00 115462 20.00
-Mr R K Saboo 46,155 8.00 46,155 800
-Dream Digital Technology Private Limited 7693 1.33 7.693 133
-Mrs. Anuradha Ssboo 42,308 73 42,308 7.33

) Bonus shares, shares buyback and issue of shares without eonsideration being receved in cash (during five years immediately preceding 31 March 2019)

During the five years immediately preceding 31 March 2019 ('the period’), neither any bonus shares have been issued nor any shares have been bought back. In addition, during
the period, no shares have been issued for consideration other than cash except as follows

(i) The Company during the previous year ended 31 March 2018 converted 1.100.010 12% cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of face value of Rs. 110 into
1,100,010 equity shares of Rs 10 each at a premium of Rs, 100 each. Further, 21,250 equity shares of Rs. 10 each had been issued under employee stock option plans for which
only evercise price hud been received in cash,

(ii) The Company bad during the year ended 31 March 2015 red d 69,228 12% fative optionally convertible preference shares of Rs. 65 each, Out of these 49,998 shares

were redeemed by way of payment and balance shares were converted into 19,230 equity m::fm 10 ¢ach at a premium of Rs 55 each

The Company had during the year ended 31 March 2015 issued 76,924, 14% cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs 130 each for consideration other than

cash.

(iv) During the year ended 31 March 2016, 36,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each had been issued under employee stock option plans for which only exercise price had been received in
cash,

{v) During the previous year ended 31 March 2018, 1,100,010 12% lative compulsory convertible prefe shares of Rs 110 each were conversed into 1,100,010 equity
shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of’ Rs. 100 per share

(i

n Lplapee stock opiion plan
Terms attached to stock options granted 1o employees of thc Caompany are deseribed in note 35 (iv) regarding share based payments

2 Nhaares reserved for rssue wonder opions and comtracts

Asal As o
3 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of A t Number of Amouni
shares shares
Under Ethos Employee Stock option Scheme-2013 - 350,000 equity shares of Rs 10 154,250 1543 171,750 1718
each, at an exercise price of Rs, 120 per share ( Refer note 35 (iv))
For 14% compulserily conventible preference shares: 576,923 equity shares of Rs. 10 576,923 5769 576,923 5769

cach




Ethos Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(AN camesares i & dakis, except for share data and if otferwise siated)

15, Other equity
(also refer o Statement of Changes in Equity)

¥

Terms attached 1o the compulsory convertibde cumulative preference shares are described.m note 16(a)i) Equity share capital

(i) Ce

v comvertible lative preference shares

(i) Ddewmed capital covrifmiton

a} Includes 14 51 owards fur value of guarantees given by the parent company n the earlier years
b Includes 50 00 is interest d om 12% ive redeemable preference shares. classified as finance cost. which is no longer payable at the time of redemption.

(i} Sk copipsdicaieens money pesding allisimen
Share application money pending allotment represents monies received against shares 1o be issued under the employee stock option plan formulated by the Company as at the year énd

(iw) Niacare: eypthoins ool stcanadinegg acint

The fuir value of the equity settled share based payment transactions with emplovees is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with corresponding credit 1o share option
outstanding account.

() el reserve

Accumulated capital surplus not available for distribution and is expected 1o remain i d p mly

(i) Securities premiwm

Securities premium represents the excess consideration received by the Company over the face value of the shares issued to sharshalders. This will be utilised in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

(v} Redemined earmings

Retained earnings represents the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any dividends, or other distributions paid 1o shareholders,
As al Asam
16,  Borrowings Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1) Nowi-ciarrent horrawings
Term-loans
From banks {secured) {a} 157 60 151 06
From others (secured) (b) 204 18 334.31
Dipossits
Inier corpurate deposiy
From related partics (unsecured) (refer to note 37) ) $17.00 517.00
From others (unsecured) id) 200.00 300,00
Depesats from shareholders (nnsecured) @) 121344 850,07
Other loans
Lowan from refatives of directers ivefer note 37) iy 3 T0 00
Toal non-curment borrowings (including curment maturities) . 2402722 223144
Less  Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer 1o note 19) (992.57) (1L122.15)
: 1409 65 1109.29

Accaumants

wa
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
TAN amornis in € lakhs, excepn for share data amd if otherwise siated)

Notes:

a) Vehicle loans amounting 1o Rs 15760 ( 31 March 2018 © Rs 151 06 lakhs) are secured against hypothecation of the specified vehicle purchased from proceeds of the said loan The
rate of interest on vehicle loans varies from 8 23% to |1 76% per annum ( 31 March 2018 = 8 23% to 11.76%) The above loans are repayable in monthly installments within a period
of next two to five years as per repayment schedula

b) The loans from others include loan taken from Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited The same is secured by exchusive mortgnge and charge on personal property of the director and
relatives of the director of the Group. These limits are also guaranteed by KDDL Limited. the director of the Group and relatives of the director The rate of interest varies from 11%
10 14 50% per annum The original Loan of Rs 450 lakhs taken in March 2014 will be repaid in 120 monthly instalments along with interest The loan outstanding as on 31 March
2019 15 Rs. 294 18 (31 March 2018 Rs 334 31) which will be repaid as per repayment schedule:

©) Inter comorate deposit from related parties carmy an interest rate ranging between 8 50% o 16% (31 March 2018 10% 10 16%) per annum and the same is repayable within 3-36
manths (31 March 2018 within 3-36 months)

d) Inter corporate deposit from others carry an interest rate ranging between 13 5% to 14% (31 March 2018 13.5% 10 14%) per annum and the same are repayable as per the repayment
schedule within twenty four months.

€) Deposits from Shareholders carry interest rate ranging between K% 1o 12.5% (31 March 2018 8% to 12 $%) per annum and carries a maturity period from 6 to 36 months from the
respective date of deposits

N Unsecured loans from relative of directors carry an interest rate of Rs Nil (31 March 2018 12 5%) per annum

As at Asat

ii) Current horrowings 31 March 2019 31 Murch 2018
Loan repayable on demand
= From banks (secared * (2} 5.230.31 335712
Other Loans
~Buyer's credit (secured) {hy - 677 46
-Deposits from sharcholders (unsecured) (i} 7399 64 26

5,304 30 4.098 84

* includes Rs Nil (31 March 2018 - Rs 1500 .00) being the amount unutilized out of equity shares issued towards preferential allotment
Notes

g) Loan repayable on demand from IDBI Bank Limited amounting to Rs 2386 7 lakhs (31 March 2018 - Rs. 1,024 6 lakhs) are repayable on demand and are secured by first parm passu
charge on all the current assets of the Company both present and future and second parri passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company both present and fiture. These limits are also
secured by exclusive mortgage and charge on all the immovable fixed assets of the tool reom unit (Eigen) of KDDL Limited at Bangalore These limits are guarsnteed by KDDL
Limited, personal guarantees of director of the Company and relative of the director The rate of interest as on 31 March 2019 varies from 11 25% to 12% (31 March 2018 1125 %,
1o | 1.50%) per annum

Loan repayable on demand from The Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited amounting to Rs. $74.9 lakhs (31 March 2018 | Rs 798 9 lakhs) are repayable on d 1 and are d by
first pari passu charge on the stock and receivables of the Company. These limits are also secured by exclusive first charge on assets of Omapac unit at Chandigarh of KDDL Limited.
This is further secured by the first and exclusive charge over land and building, machinery and office equipment of the Parwanoo unit of KDDL Limited These loans are also
guaranteed by KDDL Limited and personal guarantees of the director of the Company The rate of interest as on 31 March 2019 varies from 11 40% to 12 40% (31 Murch 2018 -
11,40 % 1o 12 40%) per annum

Loan repayable on demand from Bank of Maharashira amounting 10 Rs 1968 7 lakhs (31 March 2018 - Rs. 1,533.6 lakhs) are repayable on demand and are secured by first parri
passu charge by way of hypothecation on entire current assets of the company. These limits are also secured by 360,000 shares of KDDL Limited held by Sh Y Saboo, Managing
Director of the company and second parri passu charge on entire fived assets of the Company. Further, these limits are also guaranteed by KDDL Limited. personal guaranies of
director of the Company and relative of the director. The rate of interest as on 31 March 2016 is 11 50% (31 March 2018 - 11.50 %) per annum

) Buvers credit from IDBI Bank Limited amounting 1o Rs Nil (31 March 2018 © Rs 677 46 lakhs) are repayable on demand and are secured by first parri passu charge on all the curment
assets of the Company both present and future and second parmi passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company both presem and future. These limits are lso secured by exclusive
mortgage and charge on all the immovable fixed assets of the wol room unit (Eigen) of KDDL Limited al Bangalore These limits are guaranieed by KDDL Limited, personal
guaraniees of director of the Company and relative of the director The rare of interest as on 31 March 2019 15 Nil (31 March 2018 11 $5 % per anmum),

i) The fixed rate of interest on deposit from sharcholders for maturity period of | vear in the current year is in the range of 9 50% 1o 10% per annum (3| March 2018 10.00% to 10.50%
per anmsm)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
SANT comesmits 1 3 Takies, excepd for share dkata aned if etherwise sdoted)

Asat As at
17, Provisions Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2008
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Prowasiown for empleyvee benefits
Provision for gratuity - I 32 11023 - 6155
Provision for compensated absences is 402 128 39 169 80.60
7.14 238 62 269 142.24
As an As at
18, Trade payables®* 31 March 2019 31 Murch 2018
= Micro, small and medium enterprises # - =
- Trade payables to related parties (Refer to note 37) 338 54 686 69
- Other trade payables 631482 1036 T
6,653 36 7.723 40
# There are no micro, small and medium enterprises. to whom the Group owes dues. which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at the end of the year The imformation as
required 1o be disclosed in relation 1o micro, small and medi Prises has been determined 1o the extent such parties have been identified on the hasis of information available with
the Group
As al As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
() The principal amount remaining unpaid 1o any supplier at the end of the yvear - ]
(b) The interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of year - -

(¢} The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section |6 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 { *"MSMED Act™); along with the amount of payment made to the

supplier beyond the appointed day during the year " 2
{e) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been

paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the

MSMED act - y
{f) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of year - =
(8) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date

when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small prise, for the purpose of disall 58

deductible expense under the MSMED Act - -

** The Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risk related (o trade payables is disclosed in pote 33

As at As at
19, Other financial lnbilities 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Current matunibes of non-current borrowings (refer note 16) 092 57 112215
Capital ereditors. 105.69 104 52
Salaries, wages and bonus and other employee pavable 738 56 34300
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1o.13 107 68
1. 946 95 1,678 14
As at Asat
20, Onher curvent liabilities 3 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Deferred revenue 22257 181.71
Statutory dues 11649 94 00
Advances from customers § 287.50 72748
626.65 1,003.19
Asat As at
21 Current tax habilities (net) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Provision for income tax (net of advance tax Rs 733 33, 31 March 2018 Rs 30743 6347
1792)
DL S—
———
L/ A
s L N
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MNaotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(AN cmemants dn ¥ lenkhs, excepy for share dag and 1f othervive siated)

22,

3,

24,

7.

8.

29,

Revenue from operations

Sale of products (net of applieable tax) .
Sale of services.

Other operating revenues

Other income

Interest income under the effective mterest rate method on -
-fixed deposits

-security deposits at amortised cost
Miscellaneous

Purchase of siock-in-trade

Purchases during the year

Changes in inventories of slock-in-trade

Opening mveniory
Less closing inventory
{Increase) in inventory

Employee benefits expense

Salanes, wages and borus

Contnibution to provident and other funds
Share hased payments

StafT welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest expense on financial habilities measured ot amortised cost
Divadend on reds bie pref shares classified as financial hability mensured ot amortised cosi
Other bormowing cost

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Note

Deprecition of property, plant and equipment 3
Amortisation of other intangible assets | a4

Other expenses

Power and fuel
Service cost expense
Insurance
Rent (net of reimbursements) (refer note 40)
Rates and taxes
Repair and manienance
Foreign exchange loss (net)
Travelling and convevance
Adver and sales on (refer note 37)
Directors sitting fees
Printing and stationery
Recruiiment expenses wes
Telephone and telex
Postage and telegram
Legal and professional fees (refer note 30)
Bank charges
Bad debts
. Advances [ deposits written off
Loss on sale of Fixed assets  »
Property, plant and equipments written off (net)
Miscellaneous expenses

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
4374410 35367 87
54716 16813

120.51 7319
HALT 3560019
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
13.13 1136

8371 4239

.02 82.01

97.86 175.76

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
34,988 34 27,309 88
34.988.34 27.309.88_

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 Murch 2018

17,103 29 16,898 58
(20,556.94) (17,103 29)
Pdﬁléﬁl ’IM‘HI
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2009 31 March 2018
023 45 2,033 50
14248 11409

£ 11.76

146.59 105 64
312,52 2.268.99

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

T1215 618 9]

. 14 40

53.24 24 9%

765...!& 658.27

Year ended ¥ ear ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

47236 3694 18

121§ 1318

484.51 40736

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
123.06 104 50

5143 71 40

3574 2T

3,068 20 2,420 46

6 26 1236

13097 09 80

13461 196.59

296 08 21512

127774 762

33N 1697

1768 1413

1756 2403

70,28 65.96

188 20 15537

251N 19215

34133 29276

21,53 -
|6 88 5584
L4 ] -

. 3439

3701 9222

621987 444
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Naotes to the consolidated financial staiemenis for the year ended 31 March 2019
(AL comenipis i & fewkhs, excep for share data and (f othe rvise siated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
30. Payment to auditors
As auditor
Statutory audit : 12,50 1200
Limited review of special purpose quarterly resulis 675 675
In other capacity
Cerification work % 340 130
Other services 2.2 2
Reimbursement of expenses | 85 0.8%
2675 2263
31, Taxexpense
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
a) fncome 1ax recogrised i sinement of profit and foss
Current tax
Current year 1.013 81 8139
Changes in estumates related o prior years (29.93) -
981 68 8139
Deferred tax
Annbutable 1o-
Ongnation and reversal of temporary differences (137 88) 3993
(137 88) 3993
Total tax expense recopnised in the current year 845 80 121.32
The above tax expense for the year can be reconciled 1o the accounting profit as follows
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2013
Profit before tax
Tax ot the Indian tax rate of 34 94% (previous year 34 94%) 162,602 181 94
Effiect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 51.08 901
Effect of 1ax (henefit) / expense pertmming o prior years 2993 (63 10}
Others 217 (6.53)
Imcome tix exj recognised in of profit sind loss B45.80 121,32
S

The tax rate used for the current year reconéiliation above 15 the corporaie tax rafe of 34 94% (previous year 34 94%) payable by corporate entities in India on
taxable profits under the Indian tax lew

hil Income fax expense recognised in ather comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Deeferved tax assets/{liabilities)
Artstoge ot incomme and exprenses recogaiseed tn atfier compirelrensive inceinme
-Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 10,40 (2.36)
Tatal i tax recognised in other comprehensive i 10,40 (2.36)
Rifiercation of the ncome tax recognised inm other o h HICOe it~
Items that will not be reclassified to profitor loss ~ » 10 40 (2.36)
Items that may be reclassified 1o profi or loss A =
10.40 (2.36)
32.  Earning per share
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
A Basic earningzs per share
1 Profit ffoxs) for bavic earming per share of Ry 10 each
Prafit / (loss) for the year 1,336 85 399 40
Less : dwidend on convertible preference shares, net of tax 12658 126.58
121027 27282
i Wetghied average mamber af cequity shares for (basic)
(Ohpeming Balance 13,203,895 13,203,895
Effect of fresh issue of shares 3.157.568 BGT 611
16,361 463 14.071 506
Basic Earnings per share (face value of Rs 10 each) 7.40 1.94
B. Diluted earnings per share
1 Profie floss) for dituted carming per share of Rs. 10 each P 1,336 85 39940
n Wetghwed average member of cguity shares for diluted
Opemning Balanee® 13,203,895 13.203 895
Effect of fresh issue of shares* 3,734,491 1.945.820
16,938 386 15,149,715
Diluted carmngs per share (fice ‘:m of Rs 10 each) 740 1.94

* For the year ended 31 March 2019, 154,250 opnions and 576,923 convertible jpreferenice shares (31 Masch 2018 171,750 ophons and 576,923 converiible
preference shares) were excluded from calculanon of diluted weighted average number of equiry shares as their effect would have been anti-dilutive,
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Ethos Limited
“lotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

T amcrnts tn 2 lakis, except for share data and if atherwise stated) .
11, Financial risk management

(i) Risk management jmmmrk

The Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establish and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and
— analyse the risk faced by the Group, to set appropriate nisk limits and controls and w0 monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to effect changes in
market conditions and Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain discipline and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.
The Group’s audit committee oversees how managy manitors . hi with Group’s risk managenient policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk 12 fr rk in relati
— o risk faced by the Group. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by mtemal audit. Internal audit undertakes bath regular and adhoc reviews of risk management conirols and procedures, the
result of which are reported to audit committee.
The Group has exposure to the following risks ansing from financial instruments:
-Credit risk (see (i1));
— -Liquidity risk {see (1ii));and
-Market nsk (see (iv))
(i) Crealir risk
-1 Credit risk 15 the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty 10 a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, The carrymg amount of financial assets represents the
maximum credit nsk exposure and arises principally from the Group's recervable from customers and loans,
Trade receivabies and Loans
The Group’s retail business is pre-dominantly on cash and carry basis which is largely through credit-card collections. The credit risk on such collections is minimal, since they arc primarily owned by
Nt customers” card issumg banks. The Group has adopred a policy of dealing with only credit worthy counterparties in case of institutional customers and the credit risk exposure for institutional customers is
managed by the Group by credit worthiness checks. The Group also carries credit risk on lease deposits with landlords for store properties taken on leases, for which agreements are signed and property
possessions imely taken for store operations. The risk relating to refunds afier store shut down is managed through successful negotiations or appropriate legal actions, where necessary
The Group's experience of delinquencies and customer disputes have been minimal. Further, Trade and other receivables consist of a large number of customers, across geographies within India, hence. the
Group 15 not exposed to concentration nsks,
Cash amd cash vquivalears
The Group holds cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 853 68 lakhs at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: Rs, 728.91). The cash and cash equivalents are held with scheduled banks,
(i) Liquidity risk
Liquidity misk 15 the nsk that the Group will encounter difficulty in ting the obligan iated with s fi | liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The Croup's
appraach 0 e liguidity is to have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities whcn T.hcy are due, under both normal and stressed circumstances, without incurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage 1o
the Group's reputation
- Management manages the liquidity risk by monitoring cash flow forecasts on a periodic basis and maturity profiles of fmancial assets and liabilities. This n«mituring takes imto secount the accessibility of cash
and cash equivalents and additional undrawn financing facilities. The Group w|II continue 1o consider various borrowings of leasing options o maximuze hquidity and suppl cash req 1ents as
necessary
e
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Al amounis in & lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

(iv}

Exposure to figuidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and

undiscounted. and include contractual interest payments.

31 March 2019

Non dertvative financial liabilities
-Borrowings(including current maturities)
-Trade payables

-Capital creditors

-Salaries, wages and bonus payable
-Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

31 March 2018

Non derivative financial liabilities
-Borrowings(including current maturities)
-Trade payables

-Capital creditors

-Salaries, wages and bonus payable
-Interest acerued but not due on borrowings

Merket Risk

a) Product price risk

Contractual cash Mow

Total Less than 1 I1-5 vears More than §
year years
7.706.52 6,296 87 1.409.65 -
6,653.36 6,653.36 - -
105.69 105.69 - -
73856 738.56 - -
110.13 11013 - -
15.314.26 13,904.61 1.409.65 -
Contractual cash flow
Total Less than | 1-5 years More than §
vear years
6,3130.27 522109 1,109.18 -
7,723 .40 7.723.40 = =
104.52 104 52 - =
34399 34399 - -
107.68 107.68 = E
14.609.86 13.500.68 1.109.18 E

In a potentially inflationary economy, the Group expects periodical price increases across its retail product lines. Product price increases
which are not in line with the levels of customers’ discretionary spends, may affect the business/retail sales volumes. Since the Group
operates 1n luxury category, the demand 15 reasonably inelastic to changes in price. However, the Group continually momior and compares
prices of its products in other developed markets as its customers tend to compare prices across markets. In the event that prices deviate
significantly unfavorably from the markets, the Group negotiates with its principals for change of prices. The Group also manages the nisk
by offering judicious product discounts to retail customers to sustain volumes. The Group negotiates with its vendors for purchase price
rebates such that the rebates substantially absorb the product discounts offered to the retail customers. This helps the Group protect itself

from significant product margin losses,

Accouniants
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) Interest rate nisk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at both fixed and Aoating mterest rates Interest mute risk is measured by using the cash flow
sensitivity for changes in vanable interest rate. The borrowings of the Group are principally denominated in rupees with & mix of fixed and floating rates of
interest The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings. The exposure of the Group's borrowing
to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows

.

As at Asat

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Fixed rae borrowings 2476.21 2,073 16
Floating rate borrowings 5,230.31 3.357.12
7.706.52 6.330.28

Interest rafe sensiniviye amafisiy
A reasonably possible change of 0.50 %4 in interest rates at the reporting date would have affected the profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis has
been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate abilities assuming the amount of liability outstanding on the year-end wits outstanding
for the whole year

Profit / { Loss) before tax
For the year erded 31 Merch 2019 Strengihening Weakening
Interest rate (0 5% movement) (26.15) 2615

Fowr the year ended 31 March 2015
Interest rate (0. 5% movement ) (16 79) 16.79

¢) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk 1o the extent that there is mismatch between the currencies in which purch are d i and the functional
currency of the Group. The currencies in the which the Group is exposed to risk are CHF, USD, EUR, SGI The Group evaluates this risk on a regular basis and
appropriate nsk mitigating steps are taken, including but not limited, entering into forward contracts

Fxprasnee 0 carrency rivk

The summary quantitative data about the Group's exposure to currency risk as reported 1o the management of the Group is as follows

31 March 2019 CHF Usp SGD EUR
Trade payables 1,59525 1838 5 86 28 80
Net exposure of recognised financial liability 1,595 25 1838 586 2480
31 March 2018
Trade payables 2160 69 T3l 60 Tl 48 3212
Less Forward contract outstanding (687 80) - =
Net exposure of recoy limbility 2,160 69 4371 71.48 3212
SNereitiviry amalvsiv
A reasonably possible strengzthening (weakening) of CHF, USD, SGD, EUR against INR () at the end of the year, would have affected the measurement of
fingncial instruments d inated in a foreign v and affected equity and profit or loss by the amount shown below  This analysis assumes that all ather
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact on forecast purchasey

Profit / (Loss) (before tax) Equity {net of tax)
31 March 2019 Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
CHF (1% movement) (1595) 15.95 (10 38) 1038
SGD (1% movement ) L1 Uﬁ‘} 0,06 (0.04) 004
ELR { 1% movement) (0.29) 029 1019} (VR L]
USD (1% movement) (0 18) 018 (0.12) (1 I
31 March 2618
CHF (1% movement) 2161) 2161 i (14.06) 14.06
SGD (1% movement ) (0:32) 03z 0.21) 021
EUR (1% movement) 71 071 047 047
LSD ( 1%% movement) (7 32) 732 (4 76} 476

CHF: Swiss Franc USD: US Dollar, SGD- Singapore Dollar EUR. Euro

Capital Management

{iy  Risk memicrgement

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and 1o sustain fiture development of the
business. The management monitors the return on capital The Group monitors capital using a ratio of ‘sdjusted net debt’ o ‘total equity’ For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances. Equity comprises all components of equity (as shown in
the Balance Sheet)

The Group's adjusted net debt 10 equity ratio was as follows
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Total liabilities 16,494, 10 15,821 45
Less. cash and cash equivalents (855.68) (72891)
Adjusted net debi e 15,638 42 15,002 54
Total equity 13,388 37 9,160.73
Adjusted net debi to equity ratio 117 165
* () Dividdendds recogmized ar the end of reparting pericd

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cumulative preference dividend not recognised on 12% cumulative 55312 42654
Compulsory convertible preference shares, 14%6 cumulative compulsory
Convertible preference shares including dividend distibytion taxes
Total 55312 426.54

Chartered \ ¥ .
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3% Employee benefits

. Asat As ot
1. Assets and Dabalities relaumg (0 eniplinvee benefits 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Nem-currems -
Liability for gratuty 1023 6155
Liability for compensated absenees 128 39 R 6%
- 23861 1422
Charremt
Liability for gratuity 3z -
Liabulity for compensated absences 169
"
——T 2
—_——
—_—lld

For deim s about the relnied emplovee benelil expenses. refer o note no. 37
11, Defined benefit plan - Gratuiry
The empleyees” gratnty fund scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India s a defined benefit plan. The present value of ohligaton is determuned based on actuarial valuation

using the Progected Unit Crodit Method. which rocognises cach period of service as giving nse 1o additional unit of emplovee benefit entith and each umit Iy 1o build
up the final obligation. The Group made anmual contributicins to the LIC of Indus of an amount advised by the LIC

The above defined benefit plan exposes the Group to followmne risks:
Trterext raw risk
The defined benefil obligation cakeulated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. 1 bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend 1o increase

Salary inflation risk
Higher than expected increases i salany will inereast the defined benefit obligation

Demugraphis: risk
Thas e the nsk of vanabiliy of resulis due to unsvsiemalic nature of & that melude hity, withdrawal. disability and reti The cffeet of these decrements on the
defined benefit obligation is not strught forwand and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discoum rate and vesting crilena. 1t s ump nol o hdrawals

beciuse in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a shont carcer employee typically costs kess per vear a5 compared 10 0 loag service emplovee

The Groip actively mamtors how the duration and the expected vield of the imvestments are matching the expected cash outflaws arising from the emplovee benelit obligations. The
Group has not changed the processes used (o manage s nsks from previous periods. The funds are managed by specialised team of Lifk Insurance Carporation of India,

a) Fhanding
Gratuity  a Tunded benefit plan for qualifving employees 1K of the plan assels arc managed by LIC The assets managed are highly iguid in nature and the Group does not expect
any significant Bguidity risks.
The expected contribution t defined benefit plan i 2019-2020 i imsianificant

Recanctltapien of present vatue of de 1 obli oy b
by Recanciliarion of present vatue of defined henefis obligarton 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance at the bexinnine of the vear a7 98 3%
Benefits paid (1147 116,95}
Current service cost 280 2122

Interest cost 749 TA7

Actuarial {snins

(RSSO ENPETICT %17 1064
Balange ut the end of the vear 147.21 w987
Asmt As at
¢ Recomevhation of the presenl valve of plan avse 31 Masch 2019 31 Mirch 2018
Balance at the beginning of the vear w32 4994
Contributions paid mio the plan 5.8 523
Intgrest Income 287 400
Benefits pad (11471 (16 9K)
Retirn on plan ssscts iscd in ather hensive iscon 33y (3RTY
Balance st the end of the vear 387 2831
i
. Year ended Year ended
d} Espense recogmsed m profit or loss Vb Nt 31 Miarch 3018
Currenl service oos 1280 21.22
Interest Income A (28T (4 00y
Interest cost 144 THT
2741 2509
B . . Year ended Year ended
ather oo 2
i ol s acieckin oo K Yo 31 March 2019 31 Mareh 2018
Actuarial (gam) | loss on defined benefit oblization % 52 {10.64)
Recturn on plan sssets loss / (areater) than discouns rate 1.23 387
29.75 (6.77)
N Plaw giseis
1067t of the plan assets are manaped by LIC
2 Asmt As nt
W Actariet smptions 31 March 2019 31 Mareh 2018
Diseonunt rate (per annum) TalMpa RO0fLpa
Future salary growth rate {per anmm b A0fupa S00%pa
Retirement ase 58 vears 5% vears

A g ding [uture lity are based on Indian Assured Lives Mortabity (| ALM) { 200608 ) rates.




.rA aumm il r‘alb exeep ﬂrslmr s.icuu mu‘u athere v rmmﬂ

Semsitivity amalvats
Ressomably possihle changes at the reportmg date 10 one of the relevant actuanal ypuions, holding other constant. would have affeciod the defined benefit obligation by
the amounts shown below
Asat Asm
31 March 201% 31 March 2018

Inerense Deerease Ingrense Decrease
Dhsount rabe { 1% movement ) (1982) 16,69 {13.1%) 1194
Future salary growth rate | 1% movement ) 1aaz {17 08) 1331 {12.33)

The abwove sensitivity M\mmbnmdmlchnnyunmmnplmuhl:huﬂng-llmsmmm In practice, this is unlikeh 1o oceur, and changes in some of the
P may be correlated. When calculating the semsitivity of the defined benefit obligation 10 significant sctuarial assumptions the same mcthods {present value of defined benefit
obhsnm calculated with the projected wmt cmdll:rrmmdmlknuﬂ of the reporting period| hs been applied as when caloulanng the defimad berelit hability recogmesed in the balance

T?wmhoé:wqwdnmwummedmmm&em‘ﬂ analyvais did not change compared to the prios penod

h) Epecred henefit poymenis
Undhiscounted amount of expected beelil pavments for nest 10 vears afe as follows

As at Asat

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Within | vest 451 9
1=2 vear 4.15 in
2-3 vear 433 S0
-4 vear 419 481
48 veor a1l LR
5= 10 vears .22 4817

1L Defined contribution plans

The Group makes contribution, d d a5 o p tage of employee salanes, i respect of qualifving employees (owards Provident fund. which 18 a defined contribution plan: The
Group has no obligation other than (o make the specilied contnbutions, The Group has recogmsed Rs. 10610 (previous vear Rs. 80 60) during the vear is expense Lowards contribution

1 (e plans:
IV. Share based payments.

a) Deseription af shavebased pavment R
As a1 31 March 2019, the Group has the following share-based payment arrungemems

b} Emplovee Stock Ot Scleme foguity-seiilesl)

In the Extraordinary General Mieting held on 1003 2014, the sharcholders approved the ssue of options not exceeding 350,000 options under the Scheme litled “Ethos Employee Stack
Option Plan - 2013
The ESOP allows the tssue of options 1o cligible emplovees of the Group. Each option comprises one underiving equity share

As per the Scheme, the Compensatson Commitiee: grangs the options ke the employees deemed cligible The excremse price of cach option shall be equal 1o the “Market Prce™ as defined in
Ul Scheme. The options granted vest as follows. Options may be cxorcised within 3 vears of vesting

1. $0% of the options granted 10 the selected emplovee shall vest an |si Oclober 2017 i case there is conlinuation of his service til] the date of vesting

2. 50 on the first day of the financial vear subsequent 10 the achicvement of billing of Rs. 30,000 lakhs i amy financial vear by the Group, subjeet to the continuation of service ] the
date of vesting. However there shall remam a gap of mimmum one vear between the daie of grant and the date of vesting under this clause. The compensation commttes shall declare such
date as and when it s trigaered

T'hcﬂrup Im in its Compensation Commitice meeting on (4 08 2014 granted outstanding 3 504 options 10 emplovee of the holding Group The above opiions have been issucd by the
m fance with the terms & conditions of the "Eihos Emplovee Siock Option Plan - 2013

©) Reconctlionon of ossianding share aption

Particulars During the year ended During the year ended
3 March 2019 31 March 2018
Oiptions Weighied Oiptions Weighted
(b average cin ik AVERAZE CYEFCie
price per option price per option
’ (R} (Rs.)
Ethos Emplovee Stock Option Scheme - 2013
Ohption cutstanding ot the beginning of the vear 171,750 120 228,000 120
Grramted dunng the vear - - - -
Vestod during the vear . = % = >
Exercised durmg the year . - 20,250 120
Lapsed duning the vear 17500 120 35,000 -
Options outstanding at the end of the vear 134,250 120 171,750 120
| Options available for grant at the end of vear . - - %
| Options excreisable ot the end of the vear - - - -
|No. of shares arising out of the options outstanding 134,250 120 171,750 120
Ethes Employee Stack Option Scheme - 2013
Opuon dang a1 the b ingz of the year 3500 120 3,500 120
Ciranted during the year - - - -
Wested during the year - - - -
Exercised durmg the vear - - - -
Lapsed durmg the vear - -

Options outstanding at the end of the year 1500 120 3500 120
Options available for grant st the end of vear = = H -
Options evereisable st the end of the vear 2 = =

No_of shares arising out of the options outstanding 3500 120 3,500 120

The options eutstandimg as at 31 March 2019 have an exercise price of Rs 120 (21 March 2018 - Rs. 120) and a weighted average | lific i the range of 1 16 1o 1,56

vears (31 March 2018 2 16 to 256 vears |

s

d) Expense recognized i sumemont of profic ond loss

Asat
Particulars 31 March 2019

E Tt eqqu share based pavment transaction Line| i during the vear) (781

) The fair vabue of the optiss hay heenwdiermmed nunder the Black-Scholes mocel and the angrrs used in the measiremeni of the groni-doe fair
-

As As at

Assumpitions 31 March 20149 31 March 2018

Faur vilue nl grani date * 35 S4J56 (8 3554456, 0K

/\ isare price al grant dote 120 040 s 120,00
(&uucpm 120.00 L, 120,00

Rpp—— k Free Intcrest Rate-KRL |/KR12/Ethos 7.60%/7 60% ! B 7 60T 60%
CRarteret | I henind i ife (veors) KRL IKRL Ehos FEIT 5~ 4560416
Accountants) (e § Annual Volatility of Shares b1 f A6
Egpeciod dividend vield (in %) 158% | 5%

*Expeiod volaiility has boen bused on an evaluation of the histoncal voluulity of the Group's share price, particalarky over the historical persod commensurste with the expected term
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3%

Contingent liabilities, commitments and other matters
( tor the cxient nar provided foei

laatemis crgamst the Cirompy pot acknowledged as debis, mader dispune
As at As al
31 Mareh 2019 31 March 2018

ah Income Tax matters. 1553 <

b) Civil and Consumer matters . - 054

¢} Value Added Tax maters 1,000 71 =
1016.24

Arrears of fived cwmebatve  divdend on 2% cumdanive 55312 41654

compmisory  converible  preference shaves. 4% comnlative

compulsory convernhle  preference sharey including dividend

distribunon fxes

ey

-Estimated amourit of contracts remaining to be executed on capial 188 96 66 31

account and not provided for (net of advinces)

<umount payable under non- cancellable leases T.241 7 TI1258
TAMTE 1,178 89

Durng the year 2011-2012, pursuant 1o the isit of the officers of Direcorate general of Central excise mtelligence (DGCE) in the premises of the Group on 18
August 2011, the Group had reversed the input service tax eredit of Rs. |70 lakhs m 1is service 1ax return which was availed by the Group in previous vears. The
Mqumsodupammdm:ﬂdﬂ;dwmmw.whhmﬁmMmd.sufdnuew!\asﬂ:e(ipr|s=rmlen‘
to this imput service tax credit. Since, the amount was reversed under protest and without preyudice 1o the legal nights of the Group, the Group has shown the above
amount of Rs. |70 lakhs reversed as claim receivable under the head "Long term loans and advances” Duning the financial vear 2012-13, the Group had receved a
natice from DGCEL whereby, the Group had been called upon o show cause 15 1o why sesvice tax amounting to Rs 663 |akhs which had been short pud and
CENVAT cradit amounting to Rs. 242,77 lakhs wrongly avaled should not be demanded and recovered. The Group had filed the reply 1o the show cause notice
with the Commussioner-Central Excise and Service Tax, Chandigarh. The authority has confirmed the demand except Rs. 6 63 lakhs Further , the suthonity has
imposed a penalty of Rs. 242.77 lakhs. Being aggrieved aganst the order of Commussioner- Central Excise and Service Tax, the Group has preferred appeal with
CESTAT and the matter is sub-judice with CESTAT, Chandigarh. Due to the pending adyudication of the appenl, lisbikity on this aceoun! has not been provaded in
the accounts.

In addition, the Group is subject  legal proceedings mnd claims, which have ansen in the ordinary course of business The Group's management does not expect
that these legal actions. when ul k huded and d, wall have n material and adverse effect on the Group's results of operanons or financial
wondinon

Pursunnt o recent judgement by the Horn'ble Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, 1t was held that basic wages, for the purposé of provident fund, 1o isclude
special all which are for all employees. H . there s with respect to the applicability of the judgement and period from which the
same applies. Owing 10 the aft 4 and pending clarifi from the authorities in this regand, the Group has not recogmsed any provision for the
periads prior to 28 February 2019, Further, management also believes that the impact of the same an the Group will not be material

Related parties

Related parties amd natsere of relaied party relanonshig, where comirol extsis

[Description of Relationship Name of the Party

Ultrmate Holding Company KDDL Limited (KDDL )

Oitver relaied pearives with whom iransaeiions heve waken place,

Description of Relationship Name of the Party
Fellow Subsidiaries Mahen Distnbution Limited
Pylams SA
Entinies aver which fi f is wsed by the Key Saboo Coatinps Private Limatad
Managesnent Personnel VBL Innovations Private Limited
Vardhan Properties & Investment Limited
Entities cover which sigmficant nfluence is exercised by relative of Dream Digital Technology Private Limsted (DIDTPL)*
the Key Managemen Personnel Saboo Ventures LLP
Saboo Housing Projects LLP
Key M Personnel and rel Mr Y Saboo (Managing director)
Mr Pranay Saboe (CEQ)
Relatives of Managing director
Mr R K Saboo
Mrs. Anuradha Saboo
o Mrs Lisha Saboo

Key Managemeni Personnel
Mr. C Ruja Sekhar
Mr. Amil Dhaman

Dhrectors Mr Anil Khanna
- Mr N Subramanian
- Mr. Sundeep Kumar
Mrs. Neelima Tripath
Mr. Dulpreet Singh
Mr Mohaimin Altaf
Mr. Rajut Kakar
Relatives of Durecior Mrs Alka Khanna (Wife of Mr Anil Khonna)

Mrs Poonam Prakash (Sister of Mr Anil Khanna)
Mr Apoory Tripathi (Son of Mes Neehma Trpathi)

* DDTPL was a public limited company till 01 June 2016 With effiect from 02 June 2016, DDTPL is now @ private limited company
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Tievuersaacrecnns with related partics

As at As i
Nature of transactions 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1) Purchase of poods 1.593.39 1.129.38
- KDDL Linited - 024
- Pylamia SA 1,593.39 1,129 14
b) Sales of poods 7743 102649
- Saboo Coatings Limsted - 008
= KDDL Limited 670 904
= Mahen Distribution Limited - 1,009 28
- Saboo Venhires LLP 5807 207
- Mr. R K Saboo 1266 800
« MY Saboo . 009
M. Pranzv Saboo S 033
<} Employee benefiis 24294 6961
Shorr-termi emplayee henefits
- M Anuradha Saboo 636 603
= Mr Raya Sekhar 9251 5508
= Mr. Aml Dinman 885 851
- Mr. Pranav Saboo 13520 =
d) Interest expenses 7.2 52.39
- Mr R K Saboo £37 B75
« Vardhan Properties & Invesiment Limuted 100 1710
- Dream Digital Technology Private Limited 1228 976
= Mr Y Saboo 3% 249
- Saboo Venmres LLP 4010 14 14
= Saboo Housmg Projects LLP o070 [ 5
= Mr. Al Khanna 218 -
- Mrs Alkas Khanng 067 -
- Mrs. Poonam Prakash 086 -
- Mrs. Usha Devi Saboo 134 =
¢) Rent expense 1450 1326
- KDDL Limited 157 1326
- Mr Y Saboo a9 -
f) Rent Recesved 1500 26,29
KDDL Limited A 1770
- Dream Digital Technology Private Limited 3 a4
= Mahen Distribution Limited 1500 Bas
£) Publicity and advertisement 30,13 TIAS
- Dream Digstal Technology Private Limited - 6548
- KDDL Limued 600 600
- Pylama SA 413 -
h) Relmbursement of expenses mcurred on behalf of Ethos Limsied 184,23 1539
- KDDL Limited ¥ 18423 1251
Dream Digual Technology Privase Limited 3 288
1) Remmik: recerved for exp 1497 Rod
- KDDL Limated - 573
= Dream Digital Technology Private Lunited * - 194
- Mahen Distribution Limited 058 097
- Pylania $A 2439 z
11} Sale of Praperty, plant mnd equipment 021 -
- KDDL Limed 021
k) Purchase of Property, plant and equipment 4631 -
- KDDL Limited 4190
- Pylania SA 441 -
1) Consultancy fees paid 2.64 =
- Apoorv P Tripathi { Advocae) 164 -
m} Director Fees 3327 1680
-Mr Y Saboo 450 375
<Mr. Aml Khanna 878 490
-Mir. N Subrarmanian £25 430
Mr. Rajat Kakar - - 168
~Mr. Sundeep Kumar EET 110
~Mirs. Neslima Trpathy 097 110
=Mr Dilpreet Singh 386 -
-Mr, Mohmmin Altaf EXtA] -
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As at As
Nature of tr i 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
n) Lomn tken - 106700
- Mr R K Saboo - .
- Vardhan Properties & Investment Limited - 510.00
- Dream Digital Technology Provate Limited - 50,00
- M ¥ Saboo - 100 00
« Saboo Ventures LLP - 400,00
- Saboo Housing Projects LLP ® 700
0} Loan pad 70.00 650,00
= Wardhan Properties & In Limmitedt - GO0 00
= Mr Y Saboo . S0.00
- Mr R K Saboo 0.00 -
p112% Cumul d ble pref shares rad i - 300,00
- KDDL Limited - 300,00
q) Interest on 1 2% redecmable preference shares - 14.40
- KDDL Limited * 1440
1) Financml guaraniee expenses 0.75 0.50
- KDDL Limited 075 .50
) Equity shares sssued | converted 17.12 196.83
- KDDL Limited 1712 17198
- Mr ¥ Saboo - 1059
- Mr Amil Khanna - [EL-x]
= Mr R K Saboo - 09
- Mrs. Anuradha Saboo i
= Mr. N Subramanian ixr
* Including fesh equity shares allotied & 12% I cunvertible p
1) Share premium recerved 48287 142867
- KDDL Limited 48287 217802
= Mr R K Sahoo - a9
- Mr Y Saboo - 107 40
= Mrs. Anuradha Seboo - 1
= Mr. Anil Khanna - i 88
= Mr N Subramanian - 273
* Including premuum on equity shares allotted & on conversion of
12% cumulative convertible preference shares
w. utstamalireg bokances as ar year emd
As at As al
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Payubles 33854 686,60
- Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - 1238
KDDL Limited 22895 41.64
- Pylama SA 10071 63167
= Saboo Ventures LLP 888 -
.
Receivables / Advances 41777 £15.7%
Mahen Dismbution Linuted 417 51575
Secunity deposit given 677 677
= KDDL Limted 677 677
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Asal As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
12% Cumul pulsory converuble prefe shares 201,00 200.00
- KDDL Limited 2500 2500
- VBL Innovations Private Limited v 26 00 2600
- Dream Digital Technology Private Linuted 1000 10 00
= Mr R K Saboo 60,00 60,00
- Mr Y Saboo 2500 2500
- Mrs A Saboo X 5500 5500
Equity Share Capital 133676 131964
- Mahen Distribution Limited 22932 R
- KDDL Limed 103947 1.022.35
- Mr Y Saboo 1251 1251
- Mr C Raga Sekhar 1 06 1.06
- Mr R K Saboo 209 909
- Mrs A Saboo 227 27
= Saboo Ventures LLP 2n axz
« Wardhan Properties & Investment Limited 500 500
- Mr N Subramanian 514 514
- Mr. Anil Khanna Dod 63
Unsecured loans 63415 637.00
- Dream Digiml Technology Private Limited 10000 100 00
« Vardhan Properties & In Limited oo 10 00
- Mr R K Saboo - 000
= Mr Y Saboo S St 00
- Saboo Ventures LLP 40000 400 00
= Saboo Housmg Projects LLP 700 700
= My Aml Khanna 2000 -
< Mrs. Alka Khanna 561 -
- Mrs Poonam Prakash 654 -
= Mrs Usha Devi Saboo 8500 -
Deemed caprtal commbunon W5 En.51
- KDDL Limuted - 12% cumul | ble prefe shares 3600 600
- KDDL Limited - financial gunrantce 14351 14.51
Employee benefits TLS0 -
Nhora-ierm employee e fits
= Mr Raja Sekhar 21 50 -
- Mr Pranav Saboo S0 (H) -
Crunrantees tnken by the company 17.131.72 17,292.24
KDL Limited 592918 5,969 31
Mi. R K Saboo 4,975 18 501931
- Mr Y Saboo 592918 596931
- Mrs Usha Saboo | 204 18 33431
V. Terms and condinms
All transactions with related pames are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transacvons and within the ordinary
course of business.
.
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38, Segment information
Operating segments
Basay fur egmicniation
An operating segment is 8 compenent of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eam and incur exg including and
expenses that relate 1o fransactions with any of the Group's other components, and for which discrete financal informanon s available. All operating segments’
operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group's Chairman and Managing Director to make decisions about resources to be allocated 1 the segments mnd
asseus thar performance
The Group has two reporible segments, as deseribed helow, which are the Group's srategic busmess units. These business units offer different products and
services, and are managed separately because they require different technology and marketing strutegres. For each of the business umits, the Group's Charman and
Managing Diector reviews nieémal management reports on af |east o quarterty basis
The following summary describes the operations i each of the Group's reporablle segments
Reportable segments 0
Watch and accessones Trading of watches and accessones
Marketing and other support services IT based busimess solutions
Inferemation abom reporiable segments
Information regarding the results of ench repormable sepment is included below Perﬁmmm:: 15 mensured baced on segment profit [Lwli:lr! tax), as m:luded in the
miemal management reports that are reviewed by the Group's Cha and M. g Director S profit s used 1o
balieves that such information i the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain slu,mm.'. relative w other entities that operate within these u'adnnnes Inter-
segment pricing 15 determmed on an arm's length basis
Year ended 31 March 2019 Watch Marketing Total
and watch support and
BECESROries ther services
Seument revenug
- External revenues 44237 46 17431 4441177
- Inter-segment revenue - 9757 697.57
Totnl segment revenue “.13?-& ﬂl.ﬂ_ 45,1094
Segment profit (loss) before income tax 184566 336.99 1,182.65
Segment profit (loss) before meome tax includes
= Interest revenue G96 84 - 96 K4
- Interest expense 759467 iR 763 39
= Depreciaton and amortisation 47733 T8 484 51
- Share of profit { loss] of equity accounted invesiees - = =
Segment assets 29,060.55 189.97 19.250.52
Segment assets include
- Capital expenditure dunng the year 127050 275 1. 298 09
Segment Habilities m 106.96 28.672.79
Year ended 31 March 2018 Waich Marketing Toul
mnd watch support and
ies ather services
Sepment revenue
=« External revenues . 35,600 19 - 35,609 19
- Inter-segment revenue = -
Total segment revenue 35,609.19 - 35,609,19
Segment profit (loss) before income tax X 52095 0.23) £20.72
Segment profit {loss) before income tax includes
- Interest revenue 5684 - 96 &4
- Imterest expense 65827 - 658.27
- Deprecianon and amontisation 407 36 - 407 36
Segment assets 24.308.78 414 24,351.72
Segment nssets includa
- Capital expenditure during the yvear 1,183 63 s 1,183 83
Segment linhilities 9,490.94 0.23 9.491.17
EL Additional information- Reconciling Gross Sales (including billing under consignment arcangement and Sales tax / Goods and services tax) with net
sales:
As at As
31 Murch 2019 31 March 2018
Sules (gross ncluding Sales tax / CGoods and services ta) X 51,531.13 42,021 47
Less: Sales tax / GST - (7,23987) (6,485 47))
Net sales 44.291.26 35.536.00
The Company's sales model compnises of outnght sales nl'pm:lmedyoe-d! 1o customers &5 well as items placed on a consignment basis with the Company,
though billed by the Company. As a revenue recoy palicy, sa]ummtpannrulmspnwnde:mduSmmenomewl.mnmg-
® only the related commission ingome forms part of the other operating ncome J
s ~
- /
ETR The Company has taken @ number of sh h under lease mmumammmuw&umeﬁmpd

escalation clauses in some of the cases. Lnaumruwﬁtrmﬁnmnm‘)mn Lease p (gross of resmb Wmmummn‘n
Stement of Profit and Loss sygregate (excluding taxes as applicsble) Rs 3,237.11 l;prwm wear ended 31 March 2018 Rs.2,553 75) [including Itq !'if!!-l
towards cancellable leass (previous year Rs 264 44j]

Asat As mn|
Future minimum lease payments due 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Within one year 1,034 2¢ 1. 83925
Later than ane yewr and not later than five years 4,449 96 4,229.60
More than § years. : T53.57 1043 72
Total T.241.79 711257
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